



The Project is funded
by the European Union

EUROEAST CULTURE

RMCB Unit

**Eastern Partnership Culture Programme
Regional Monitoring and Capacity Building Unit
(RMCBU)**

EuropeAid Contract No 2010/255-219

**Inventory of existing documentations and regional/national/local
initiatives in policy and legal development for the cultural sector in
Ukraine**

**Studies and Diagnostics on Cultural Policies
of the Eastern Partnership Countries**

Data for this Report has been collected by the Expert of the Regional Monitoring and Capacity Building Unit of the Eastern Partnership Culture Programme Mr. Mykola Skyba in February 2012 (partly revised in December 2014).

This report has been prepared with assistance of the European Union. The content of this report is the sole responsibility of the Regional Monitoring and Capacity Building Unit of the Eastern Partnership Culture Programme. It reflects the opinion of contributing experts and can in no way be taken to reflect the views of the European Commission.

The RMCBU Project is implemented by the Consortium led by Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) GmbH in partnership with HYDEA S.p.A. (Italy) and RWTH Aachen University (Germany).

Table of Contents

I	Policy and legal framework for culture	3
1.	List of ratified international conventions	3
2.	National culture legislation (laws; regulative acts, sector specific regulations)	4
3.	Overall culture policies and/or sectoral strategies (i.e. film, heritage, etc).....	5
4.	Summary of laws with an impact on frame conditions: income tax, VAT, tax exemption for investments in culture, NGO registration, etc.	6
II	Existing analytic documents (reports, research, reviews, etc.) assessing national cultural policy	6
1.	Prepared by national experts	6
2.	Prepared by external experts	8
III	Sector structure	8
1.	Authorities.....	8
a.	National Authorities (Ministries involved in culture, including structure and distribution of responsibilities – organogram) See Attachment 1	8
b.	Parliament (commissions)	8
2.	Public cultural institutions:	8
a.	Public Museums (per sector).....	8
b.	Public Sites (per sector)	9
c.	Public Theatres, Opera Houses & Concert Halls	9
d.	Public Cinemas.....	10
e.	Public Film & Music distributors	10
f.	Public Broadcasters	10
g.	Public Culture Houses	10
h.	Public Book Publishers.....	10
i.	Public Libraries (per sector)	11
j.	Archives.....	11
3.	Civil society participation	12
a.	Professional Unions, Guilds & Associations related to culture (per sector)	12
b.	NGO's, associations with activities in culture (per sector)	12
c.	Private culture, or culture interest related private associations (i.e. film clubs)	13
d.	Outstanding personalities active in culture, active artists (per sector)	13
e.	Private foundations, donors, sponsors	13
f.	International donors, sponsors	13
4.	Business related to culture	13
a.	Private companies	13
b.	Private Museums.....	13
c.	Private Art Galleries.....	13
d.	Private Theatres and Concert Halls	14
e.	Private Cinemas	14
f.	Private legal film & CD/DVD distributors (film & music sector)	14
g.	Private Broadcasters	14
h.	Private Book Publishers	14
IV	Regional/national/local policy initiatives focusing on inter-/intraregional aspects	15
1.	International cooperation	15
a.	Participation in international networks, programmes, projects, with EU, EU-members, international organizations, like UNESCO, UN, USAID	15
	Attachment 1 The Ministry of Culture of Ukraine Organogram	16

I Policy and legal framework for culture

1. List of ratified international conventions

- European Cultural Convention (1954 / 1994)
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/994_213
- UNESCO Convention on the Protection and Promotion of the Diversity of Cultural Expressions (Signed - 2005 / Effective Date for Ukraine - 2010)
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/952_008 .
- the International Convention on the Protection of Intangible Cultural Heritage (2003 /2008) http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_d69
- Rome Convention on Protection of the Rights of Authors (Geneva,1952 / 1994)
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/952_002
- International Charter for the Protection and restoration of built heritage (Cracow Charter, 2000) http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/952_009
- International Convention for the Protection of Performers, Producers of Phonograms and Broadcasting Organizations (Rome, 1961/ 2001)
http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_763 .
- Bern Convention on the Protection of Literary and Artistic Works (1971 / 1995)
http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_051 .
- Convention on the Protection of Cultural Property in the event of Armed Conflicts (Hague, 1954 / 1954);
- European Landscapes Convention (The Florence Convention, 2000 / 2006)
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/994_154
- European Convention on Protection of the Archeological Heritage (London, 1969 / 2004)
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/994_150 ;
- Convention on Means of Prohibiting and Preventing the Illicit Export, Import and Transfer of Ownership of Cultural Property (1970 / 1988)
http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_186 ;
- Conventions for the Protection of World Cultural and Natural Heritage (Paris, 1972 / 1996) <http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws> ;
- Convention for the Protection of the Architectural Heritage of Europe (Granada Convention, 1985 / 2006) http://zakon.nau.ua/doc/?code=994_226 ;
- European Convention on the Protection of Archeological Heritage (Valletta, 1992 / 2004)
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/994_150 ;
- UNIDROIT Convention on Stolen or Illegally Exported Cultural Objects;
- Convention on the Protection of the Underwater Cultural Heritage (Paris, 2001 / 2009)
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_c52 ;
- Convention for the Safeguarding of the Intangible Cultural Heritage (Paris, 2003);
- The European Landscapes Convention (The Florence Convention, 2000);
- European Convention on cinematographic co-production
- European Convention on Transfrontier Television (1998 / 2008)
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/994_444
- [Universal Copyright Convention](#)

Other significant international documents

- International Charter for the Protection and restoration of built heritage (Cracow Charter, 2000) http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/952_009
- Declaration of Principles on Tolerance Approved by Resolution of the General Conference of UNESCO (1995) http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_503
- Recommendation on the Safeguarding of Folklore November 15, 1989
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_727
- Recommendation on the protection of movable cultural property
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_295
- Protocol to the Agreement on the importation of the things with educational, scientific and cultural profile (1976) http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_312
- The European Convention Offences relating to Cultural Property
http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/994_049
- EU-Ukraine Association Agreement (The Cultural issues in Chapters 4, 163, 174, 437 – 440) http://eeas.europa.eu/ukraine/assoagreement/assoagreement-2013_en.htm

2. National culture legislation (laws; regulative acts, sector specific regulations)

All acts:

- Law on Culture (2011)
<http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/%D0%B7%D0%B0%D0%BA%D0%BE%D0%BD%20%D1%83%D0%BA%D1%80%D0%B0%D1%97%D0%BD%D0%B8%20%D0%BF%D1%80%D0%BE%20%D0%BA%D1%83%D0%BB%D1%8C%D1%82%D1%83%D1%80%D1%83>
- Law on National Minorities in Ukraine (1992)
<http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/%D0%B7%D0%B0%D0%BA%D0%BE%D0%BD%20%D1%83%D0%BA%D1%80%D0%B0%D1%97%D0%BD%D0%B8%20%D0%BF%D1%80%D0%BE%20%D0%BD%D0%B0%D1%86%D1%96%D0%BE%D0%BD%D0%B0%D0%BB%D1%8C%D0%BD%D1%96%20%D0%BC%D0%B5%D0%BD%D1%88%D0%B8%D0%BD%D0%B8%20%D0%B2%20%D1%83%D0%BA%D1%80%D0%B0%D1%97%D0%BD%D1%96>
- Law on Information (1992)
<http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/%D0%B7%D0%B0%D0%BA%D0%BE%D0%BD%20%D1%83%D0%BA%D1%80%D0%B0%D1%97%D0%BD%D0%B8%20%D0%BF%D1%80%D0%BE%20%D1%96%D0%BD%D1%84%D0%BE%D1%80%D0%BC%D0%B0%D1%86%D1%96%D1%8E>
- Law on Television and Radio Broadcasting (1993)
<http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3759-12>
- Law on Copyright and Related Rights (1994)
<http://www.wipo.int/wipolex/en/details.jsp?id=5115>
- Law on Libraries and Librarianship (1995; 2008)
<http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1388-17>
- Law on Museums and Museum Affairs (1995; 2009)
<http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/249/95-%D0%B2%D1%80>
- Law on the National Archive Fund and Archive Institutions (1994)
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Law-base/Laws/index.php?2001-2888-3>
- Law on Governmental Support to Mass Media and Social Protection of Journalists (1997)
<http://zakon.nau.ua/eng/doc/?uid=3019.244.7>
- Law on Cinematography (1998; 2010) <http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/9/98-%D0%B2%D1%80> ;
- Law on Preservation of Cultural Heritage (2000)
<http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2245-15>
- Law on Export, Import and Restitution of Cultural Goods (1999)
<http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1068-14>
- Law on Distribution of Copies of Audio and Visual Products and Phonograms (2000)
- Law on Theatre and Performing Arts Activities (2005)
- Law on Professional Artists and Artistic Unions (1997)
- Law on Access to Public Information (2011)
- Cultural Heritage (normative act and regulations)

In cultural field:

<http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua/mincult/uk/publish/article/263133>

- Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 12.12. 2011 № 1271 On approving the list of paid services that may be cultural, based on state and municipal property.
- Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 12.11.1998 № 1775 On the standards of the provision of population by clubs

Architecture, urban planning and heritage protection:

http://www.minregionbud.gov.ua/index.php?option=com_k2&view=item&id=932:перелік-нормативно-правових-та-інших-актів-що-використовуються-у-сферах-дії-мінрегіону&Itemid=13&lang=uk

- The List of Historical Inhabited Places of Ukraine (cities and villages) (the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 26.07. 2001 № 878). This list includes 401 cities and urban villages.
- The Order of the procedure of defining the category of the objects of the cultural heritage for registering in State Register of Immovable Monuments of Ukraine (the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 27.12.2001 № 1760). This document establishes order of inclusion of the objects of cultural heritage to the State Register of Immovable Monuments of Ukraine and determines criteria of inclusion to the Register on the categories of national and local significance of the monument.
- The order of formation of security contracts for objects of cultural heritage (the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 28.12.2001 № 1768), the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 29.10.03 № 1699 "On Ratification of Model Contract of Gratuitous Use of Religious Buildings and Other State Property by Religious Organizations". These documents determine the order of formation of security contract for the monument, which establish the regulation of monument's use and maintenance.
- The Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 14.02.02 № 137 "On Conditions of Assignment of Religious Buildings, which are Significant Monuments of Architecture, to Religious Organizations".
- The order of issue of permits for archaeological investigations, excavations, and other earthwork operations on the territory of the monument, protected archaeological territory, in protected areas and historical areas of the inhabited cities, as well as permits for investigations of remains of human activity under the earth surface and water on the territory of Ukraine (the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 13.03.02 № 316).
- The order of delimitation of boundaries of historical areas of inhabited places and regulations of their use, restriction on economic activity on the territory of historical areas of inhabited places (the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 13.03.2002 № 318).
- Procedure of pecuniary valuation of monuments (the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 26.09.2002 № 1447).
- Complex programme of issue of passports for the objects of cultural heritage for 2003 – 2010 (the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of 09.09.2002). The purpose of the programme is improvement of accounting of the objects of cultural heritage, ensuring of their state registration.
- The order on the museum collections and museum items that are kept in museums and national parks in the temporarily occupied territory of the Autonomous Republic of Crimea and Sevastopol City. (Ministry of Culture of Ukraine 26.06.2014 № 497) <http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua/mincult/uk/publish/article/363813>
- The order on the project Libraries as centers for support of community in situation of military threat, work with internally displaced persons " (Ministry of Culture of Ukraine of 18.09.2014, № 773) <http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua/mincult/uk/publish/article/371947>
- The order on the approval of the development and submission for approval of staff lists and changes to staff of enterprises, institutions and organizations, financed from the state budget of Ukraine belonging to the Ministry of Culture of Ukraine. (Ministry of Culture of Ukraine on 12.03.2014, № 142) <http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua/mincult/uk/publish/article/354253>

In sphere of book printing, television and broadcasting

http://comin.kmu.gov.ua/control/uk/publish/category/main?cat_id=89169

3. Overall culture policies and/or sectoral strategies (i.e. film, heritage, etc)
 - The draft of the Concept of the Humanitarian Development of Ukraine till 2020 year. http://old.niss.gov.ua/book/StrPryor/StPrior_12/3.pdf

4. Summary of laws with an impact on frame conditions: income tax, VAT, tax exemption for investments in culture, NGO registration, etc.

The below acts are available on the following web-resources:

<http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/cgi-bin/laws/main.cgi>;

<http://kmu.gov.ua>

http://www.minjust.gov.ua/derzh_reestr

<http://search.ligazakon.ua/search/law/>

<http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/cgi-bin/laws/main.cgi>;

- Budget Code of Ukraine (2002) - defines allocation of public funds for culture between different levels of government.
- Tax Code of Ukraine (2010) - sets the tax regime and the size of mandatory payments to the budget
- Law on Charity and Charitable Foundations (1997) - defines tax exemption for funds voluntarily transferred to support culture or cultural activities
- Law On the Prevention and Combating Corruption (2011) - defines the basic principles of preventing and combating corruption in public and private spheres of social relations
- Law On Land Management (2009) - regulation of relations arising between government, local authorities, legal entities and individuals to ensure sustainable land use

II Existing analytic documents (reports, research, reviews, etc.) assessing national cultural policy

1. Prepared by national experts

- Sushko, Olesksandr and Prystayko, Olena (Centre for Peace, Conversion and Foreign Policy of Ukraine) for the Council and the European Parliament on Strengthening the European Neighbourhood Policy, "ENP Transatlantic Commitments", German Marshall Fund of the United States and Heinrich Boell Foundation, 2005.
- Дослідження проблем узгодження законодавчої бази культури України із законодавством для сфери культури Європейського Союзу (Research harmonization legislation of Culture of Ukraine to the legislation for the cultural sphere of the European Union (O.Grytsenko, V.Solodovnyk, N.Honcharenko, Y.Mahka in frame of researching program of the UCCS) http://www.culturalstudies.in.ua/2008_zv1_menu.php
- Культурна політика в Україні. Аналітичний огляд (під ред. О.Гриценко). – К.: УЦКД, 2007
- Heritage Assessments Report. Ukraine prepared within the Pilot Project "Rehabilitating Heritage in Historic Towns" in Ukraine (a joint action of the European Commission and Council of Europe) by the working group for the PP2 initiative, including the following members: Skyba Mykola, Deputy General Director of the National Museum of Art of Ukraine on economic issues (Project Coordinator), Butsenko Oleksandr, Director of the NGO Development Centre "Democracy through culture", Vecherskiy Viktor, Deputy Director of the Scientific and research Institute on the Protection of Cultural Heritage, Mykola Yakovyna, President of Ukrainian Committee of the ICOMOS, Kyrylenko Ludmyla, Lawyer in the Scientific and Research Institute on the Protection of Cultural Heritage, Serdyuk Olena, Director of the Scientific and Research Institute on the Protection of Cultural Heritage
http://www.coe.int/t/dg4/cultureheritage/cooperation/kyiv/pp2/KI_2010_049-PP2UkraineHAR.pdf (in English only)
- Національний звіт про культурну політику в Україні (The National Cultural Policy Report of Ukraine) <http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua/mincult/uk/index> (Ukrainian version) 2010

- "Аналіз репрезентації української культури на веб-сайтах обласних державних адміністрацій України" Аналітична записка старшого консультанта відділу соціокультурних та етнонаціональних досліджень ("The analysis of representing Ukrainian culture on the regional state administrations' websites " Policy Brief by the Olexandr Cuzmuk Senior Consultant of the Department of sociocultural and ethnic studies of the National Institute for Strategic Research (NISS). 2010 <http://www.niss.gov.ua/articles/224/> (in Ukrainian only)
- "Пріоритетні напрями забезпечення прав людини у міжкультурних відносинах в Україні". Аналітична записка ("The priorities of human rights in cross-cultural relations in Ukraine." Policy Brief by O.Lytvynenko and O.Rosumna the Senior Consultant of the Department of the Humanitarian Policy of the National Institute for Strategic Research (NISS) 2011. <http://www.niss.gov.ua/articles/456/> (in Ukrainian only)
- "Перспективи розширення участі українського кінематографу в проектах копродукції". Аналітична записка ст. консультанта відділу гуманітарної політики НІСД Оксани Розумної ("The prospects of increasing the participation of Ukrainian cinema in co-production projects." Policy Brief by Oxana Rozumna Senior Consultant of the Department of the Humanitarian Policy of the (NISS) 2011. <http://www.niss.gov.ua/articles/530/> (in Ukrainian only)
- "Особливості сучасного організаційного та законодавчого забезпечення менеджменту культурної галузі в Україні". Аналітична записка старшого консультанта відділу гуманітарної політики НІСД ("The characteristics of modern organizational and legislative support management of the cultural sector in Ukraine." Policy Brief by Olexandr Lytvynenko, the Senior Consultant of the Department of the Humanitarian Policy of the NISS) 2011 <http://www.niss.gov.ua/articles/528/> (in Ukrainian only)
- Рапорт про стан культури і НУО в Україні, збірник текстів, зініційований Фондацією «Open Culture» (A report on the condition of culture and NGO in Ukraine - textbook, initiated by the Foundation «Open Culture») <http://kulturaenter.pl/wp-content/uploads/2013/02/A-Report-on-the-Condition-of-Culture-and-NGOs-in-Ukraine.pdf>
- "Особливості сучасного організаційного та законодавчого забезпечення менеджменту культурної галузі в Україні". Аналітична записка старшого консультанта відділу гуманітарної політики НІСД Олександра Литвиненка. ("The characteristics of modern organizational and legislative support management of the cultural sector in Ukraine." Policy Brief by Olexandr Lytvynenko, the Senior Consultant of the Department of the Humanitarian Policy of the NISS) 2011 <http://www.niss.gov.ua/articles/528/> (in Ukrainian only).
- "Актуальні проблеми формування державної культурної політики". Аналітична записка відділу гуманітарної політики НІСД, грудень 2013 р. (Actual problems of formation of state cultural policy. "Policy Brief Humanitarian Policy NISS, December 2013) <http://www.niss.gov.ua/articles/1429/> (in Ukrainian only).
- "Проблеми інституційного забезпечення політики реформ у сфері культури". Аналітична записка гуманітарної політики НІСД, грудень 2013 р. (О. Л. Валевський) «Issues of institutional support for policy reforms in the culture field. "Policy Brief Humanitarian Policy NISS, December 2013) <http://www.niss.gov.ua/articles/1428/> (in Ukrainian only).
- "Питання розвитку цифрової культури українського соціуму". Аналітична записка відділу гуманітарної політики (Анатолій Астаф'єв) НІСД, вересень 2014 р. - "The development of digital culture of Ukrainian society." Memorandum Department of Humanitarian Policy by Anatoly Astaf'yev, NISS, September 2014 <http://www.niss.gov.ua/articles/1631/> (in Ukrainian only).

- "Досвід функціонування європейських інститутів культурної дипломатії: висновки для України". Аналітична записка старшого консультанта відділу гуманітарної політики НІСД Олени Розумної. ("The experience of the European Institute for Cultural Diplomacy: Lessons for Ukraine". Policy Brief by Oxana Rozumna, the Senior Consultant of the Department of the Humanitarian Policy of the NISS <http://www.niss.gov.ua/articles/1649/> (in Ukrainian only).

2. Prepared by external experts

- The Cultural Policy in Ukraine: assess by international experts <http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua/mincult/uk/index>.
- "Culture and Civil Society: New Relationships with the Third Sector", Council of Europe Publishing, Strasbourg, Council of Europe/ERICarts, "Compendium of Cultural Policies and Trends in Europe, 8th Edition", 2007, Country Profile for Ukraine.
- Culture and Change in Ukraine. Report prepared by Yael Ohana, Rapporteur Generale within the East European Reflection Group (EE RG), August 2007 <http://www.eurocult.org/uploads/docs/611.pdf>
- European Commission Staff Working Document accompanying the Communication from the Commission to Fisher, Rod and Fox, Roger for Council of Europe, Cultural Policies, Research Development Unit, Policy Note 6, Forbrig, Joerg and Shepherd, Robin, "Ukraine after the Orange Revolution: Strengthening European and Freedom House, Nations in Transit 2006, Report for Ukraine. July 2001.
- Progress Report: Ukraine", (COM (2006) 726 final), Brussels, December 4, 2006.

III Sector structure

1. Authorities

- a. National Authorities (Ministries involved in culture, including structure and distribution of responsibilities – organogram) See Attachment 1
 - The Cabinet of Ministry of Ukraine <http://kmu.gov.ua>
 - The Ministry of Culture of Ukraine <http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua>
 - The State Agency of Cinematograph <http://dergkino.gov.ua/>
 - The Ministry of Culture of Crimea <http://www.mincult.crimea-portal.gov.ua/ukr/index.php?v=5&tek=75&par=41>
 - The State Committee for Television and Radio Broadcasting <http://comin.kmu.gov.ua>
 - The Ministry of the Regional Development, Construction of Ukraine <http://www.minregionbud.gov.ua>
 - The Ministry of Justice of Ukraine <http://www.minjust.gov.ua>
 - State Affairs Department <http://www.dus.gov.ua/ua.phtml>
 - National Institute for Strategic Study <http://niss.gov.ua>
 - State Statistics Service of Ukraine <http://www.ukrstat.gov.ua/>
- b. Parliament (commissions)
 - The Verkhovna Rada (Parliament) of Ukraine <http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua>

2. Public cultural institutions:

- a. Public Museums (per sector)
 - The National Cultural Art and Museum Centre "Mystetsky Arsenal" <http://artarsenal.in.ua/eng/>
 - The National Kyiv-Pechersk historical and cultural Preserve <http://www.kplavra.kiev.ua/>
 - St. Sophia national Conservation Area <http://nzsk.org.ua/node/33>
 - The National Art Museum of Ukraine <http://namu.kiev.ua>
 - The National Museum of History of Ukraine <http://nmiu.org.ua>

- The National Andriy Sheptytsky Museum in Lviv <http://nm.lviv.ua/>
 - The National Center of Traditional Culture “Ivan Honchar Museum” <http://honchar.org.ua/english/>
 - Ukrainian Folk Decorative Art Museum <http://www.mundm.kiev.ua>
 - The National Museum of Ukrainian Pottery in Opishne <http://www.opishne-museum.gov.ua/en>
 - The National Bohdan and Varvara Museum of Art <http://www.khanenkomuseum.kiev.ua/>
 - The National Museum of Chernobyl <http://chornobylmuseum.kiev.ua/index.php?lang=uk>
 - The Dnipropetrovsk National History Dmetro Yavornytsky under Dnipropetrovsk State Regional Administration <http://museum.dp.ua/#>
 - The State Museum of natural History under the National Academy of Science of Ukraine
-
- All Museums: The Web-site of the MoC <http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua/mincult/uk/publish/category/81657>
 - All Museums: The Museums Space of Ukraine <http://prostir.museum/museums/ua>
 - Museums of the Crimea: Web-site of the Ministry Culture of the Crimea <http://www.mincult.crimea-portal.gov.ua/ukr/index.php?v=5&tek=67&par=41>
 - Museums of the Donetsk Region <http://center.donetsk.ua/kultura/muzeji-donecka-i-oblasti>
 - Museums of the Carpathian Region <http://www.museum.if.ua>
 - Museums of the Trans Carpathians <http://www.kolyba.org.ua/kulturadovidka>
- b. Public Sites (per sector)
- The Research/Studies Centres/Institutes
- Ukrainian Center for Cultural Studies <http://www.culturalstudies.in.ua/English/index.php>
 - Institute of Culture Studies of The Academy of Arts of Ukraine <http://www.icr.kiev.ua/>
 - Research Institute for Monuments Preservation <http://www.spadshina.org.ua/>
 - The National Research Restoration Centre of Ukraine <http://www.restorer.kiev.ua/>
 - The Modern Art Research Institute <http://www.mari.kiev.ua/02e.htm>
 - The Les' Kurbas State Centre for Theatre Arts <http://kurbas.org.ua/en/centre.html>
- c. Public Theatres, Opera Houses & Concert Halls
- Under the MoC of Ukraine
- The National Taras Shevchenko Opera of Ukraine http://operacomua.colocall.com/old_site/index_en.htm
 - The Lviv Solomiya Krushelnitsky National Opera <http://opera.lviv.ua/>
 - The Donetsk Anatoliy Solovyanenko State Opera http://donetsk-opera-ballet.org/index.php?module=show_new&new_id=81
 - The Odessa National Opera <http://www.opera-ballet.tm.odessa.ua/>
 - The Dnipropetrovsk State Academic Opera and Ballet Theater under Dnipropetrovsk State Regional Administration <http://www.opera-ballet.com.ua>
 - The Kharkiv National Mykola Lysenko Opera www.hatob.org
 - The Kyiv National Operetta <http://kiev-operetta.kiev.ua/index.php?lang=en>
 - The Municipal Opera and Ballet Academic Theater for Children and Youth under The Kyiv City Council <http://musictheatre.kiev.ua/>
 - Chernovtsy Music and Drama theatre under Chernovtsy State Regional Administration <http://dramtheater.cv.ua/history.html>
 - The National Philharmonic of Ukraine under the MoC <http://www.filarmonia.com.ua/en>
 - The Lviv Regional Philharmonic under Lviv State Regional Administration <http://www.philharmonia.lviv.ua>
 - The Kharkiv Philharmonic under Kharkiv State Regional Administration <http://www.filarmonia.kharkov.ua>

- The National Organ Hall <http://www.organhall.kiev.ua/>
- The Palace for Art "Ukraine" under the State Affairs Department <http://npmu.com.ua/new>
- the National Symphony Orchestra of Ukraine <http://nsou.com.ua/eng/greetings.html>
- The National Ivana Franka Drama theater of Ukraine <http://www.ft.org.ua/index.php?do=static&page=keriv>
- The Kharkiv State Taras Shevchenko Drama Theater <http://www.theatre-shevchenko.com.ua/>

Consolidated recourses:

- Kyiv theaters <http://www.kartka.com.ua/dovidnik/kultura/teatr>
- Lviv theaters <http://v.lviv.ua/catalog/rest/theatre>
- Odessa theaters <http://www.odessa.ua/ua/theatres/>
- Crimea theaters http://www.poiradar.com.ua/pois/AR_Krym-4004/ArtCulture_Theatre#/pois/AR_Krym-4004/ArtCulture_Theatre
- Donetsk theaters <http://mapia.ua/ua/donetsk/teatr>

d. Public Cinemas

- "Zhovten" under Kyiv City Council <http://zhovten-kino.kiev.ua/text/1>
- "Leipzig" (Kyiv) under Kyiv City Council <http://kinokiev.com/?idc=34>
- "Karpaty" (Lviv) under Lviv City Council <http://bizinua.info/r13/info/452173>
- "Zustrich" (Kharkiv) under Kharkiv City Council <http://party.com.ua/kharkov/place/724/>

e. Public Film & Music distributors

- The regional association "Kinovideoprokat" (include 24 branch in each region) <http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua/mincult/uk/publish/article/82022>

The full list of the film distributors:

<http://dergkino.gov.ua/indx.php?rcode=80&level=0&templ=list&mt=m&ot=n>

f. Public Broadcasters

- National Radio Company of Ukraine <http://www.nrcu.gov.ua/index.php?id=2>
- Kyiv State Regional TV and Radio under Kyiv City Council <http://www.tuugo.com.ua/>
- Radio Company "The city at the Bug" under Vinnitsa City Council <http://www.radio-mb.com.ua/contacts>

The full list of the Public Broadcasters assemble by

http://uk.wikipedia.org/wiki/%D0%A3%D0%BA%D1%80%D0%B0%D1%97%D0%BD%D1%81%D1%8C%D0%BA%D1%96_%D1%80%D0%B0%D0%B4%D1%96%D0%BE%D1%81%D1%82%D0%B0%D0%BD%D1%86%D1%96%D1%97

g. Public Culture Houses

- The National Centre for Business and Cultural relation under the State Affairs Department <http://www.ukrdim.org.ua/>
- The Lviv Palace for Art "Kopernik" under Lviv City Council <http://artpalace.org.ua/cat/news>

More information on the MoC web-site:

<http://mincult.kmu.gov.ua/mincult/uk/publish/article/52658>

h. Public Book Publishers

- «Lybid»
- «Mystetsvo»
- «Svit»
- «Kamenyar»
- «Karpaty»
- «Pressa Ukrayiny»
- «Veselka»
- «Naukova dumka»

- i. Public Libraries (per sector)
 - National Volodynyr Vernadsky Liabries of the National Academy of the Sience of Ukraine

- j. Archives
 - Ukrainian Research Institute of Archival Affairs and Record Keeping
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/UNDIASD.php>

 - Central State Archives:
 - Central State Archives of Supreme Bodies of Power and Government of Ukraine
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca01.php>
 - Central State Archives of Public Organizations of Ukraine
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca02.php>
 - Central State Historical Archives of Ukraine in Kyiv
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca03.php>
 - Central State Historical Archives of Ukraine in Lviv
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca04.php>
 - Central State CinePhotoPhono Archives of Ukraine named after H. Pshenychnyi
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca05.php>
 - Central State Scientific and Technical Archives of Ukraine
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca06.php>
 - Central State Archives Museum of Literature and Art of Ukraine
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca07.php>
 - Central State Archives of Foreign Archival Ucrainica
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca09.php>
 - Central State Electronic Archives of Ukraine
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca11.php>
 - State Archives Research Library of Kiev
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ca08.php>

 - Regional State Archives
 - State Archives in the Autonomous Republic of Crimea
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra01.php>
 - State Archives of Vinnytsia Oblast
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra02.php>
 - State Archives of Volyn Oblast
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra03.php>
 - State Archives of Dnipropetrovsk Oblast
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra04.php>
 - State Archives of Donetsk Oblast
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra05.php>
 - State Archives of Zhytomyr Oblast
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra06.php>
 - State Archives of Transcarpathian Oblast
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra07.php>
 - State Archives of Zaporizhzhya Oblast
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra08.php>
 - State Archives of Ivano-Frankivsk Oblast
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra09.php>
 - State Archives of Kiev Oblast
<http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra10.php>
 - State Archives of Kirovohrad Oblast

- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra11.php>
- State Archives of Luhansk Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra12.php>
- State Archive of Lviv Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra13.php>
- State Archives of Mykolayiv Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra14.php>
- State Archives of Odesa Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra15.php>
- State Archives of Poltava Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra16.php>
- State Archives of Rivne Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra17.php>
- State Archives of Sumy Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra18.php>
- State Archives of Ternopil Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra19.php>
- State Archives of Kharkiv Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra20.php>
- State Archives of Kherson Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra21.php>
- State Archives of Khmelnytskyi Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra22.php>
- State Archives of Cherkasy Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra24.php>
- State Archives of Chernivtsi Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra25.php>
- State Archives of Chernihiv Oblast
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra26.php>
- State Archives in the City of Kyiv
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra27.php>
- State Archives in the City of Sevastopol
- <http://www.archives.gov.ua/Eng/Archives/ra28.php>

3. Civil society participation

- a. Professional Unions, Guilds & Associations related to culture (per sector)
 - The Academy of Arts of Ukraine <http://academia.gov.ua/indexe.html>
 - The National Union of Artists of Ukraine <http://www.nshu.org.ua/>
 - National Organization of Architects of Ukraine <http://nsau.org/>
 - The National Union of Writers of Ukraine <http://www.nspu.org.ua/27>
 - The National Union of Composers of Ukraine <http://uk.wikipedia.org/wiki/%D1%80%D0%B0%D1%97%D0%BD%D0%B8>
 - National Ukrainian Music Union The National Union of Cinematography of Ukraine <http://www.ukrkino.com.ua/about.php>
 - National Union of Folk Art Masters of Ukraine <http://folkart.kiev.ua/index-eng.html>
- b. NGO's, associations with activities in culture (per sector)
 - Agency of Cultural Strategy
 - Congress activists Culture Foundation Center for Contemporary Art
 - Center for Cultural Management (Lviv)
 - Assembly of the Actor of the Cultural (Zaporizhya)

- c. Private culture, or culture interest related private associations (i.e. film clubs)
 - Mayster-klass “open places”
 - Chasopys
 - Froud House
 - More information
- d. Outstanding personalities active in culture, active artists (per sector)
<http://culture2014.zn.ua/>
- e. Private foundations, donors, sponsors
 - Bohdan Hawrylyshyn Charitable Foundation
<http://bhfoundation.com.ua/en/OurFoundation/Mission.html>
 - The International Renaissance Foundation <http://www.irf.ua/en/about/irf/>
 - Victor Pinchuk Foundation http://pinchukfund.org/en/about_fund/our_team/
 - The Open Ukraine Foundation
 - Rinat Akhmetov's Foundation <http://www.fdu.org.ua/en/fond>
- f. International donors, sponsors
 - European Commision
<https://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/node/358>
 - Heinrich Boell Foundation <http://ua.boell.org/uk/categories/foundation>
 - GIZ in Ukraine <http://www.giz.de/en/worldwide/302.html>
 - SDC - Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation
<https://www.eda.admin.ch/content/countries/ukraine/en/home.html>
 - SIDA – Swedish International Development Cooperation Agency
<http://www.sida.se/English/where-we-work/Europe/Ukraine-/>
 - United Nations Development Programme in Ukraine <http://www.ua.undp.org/>
 - USAID – US Agency for International Development- <http://www.usaid.gov>

4. Business related to culture

- a. Private companies
 - Comora Ukranian - British joint venture - <http://komora.com>
 - Pro.mova expert company - <http://www.pro-mova.com/>
- b. Private Museums
 - The Museum of Modern Ukrainian <http://modern-museum.org.ua/en/index.htm>
 - Olexandr Prognimak Cultural Center <http://alexart.ua>
 - The Museum “Holy Treasure of Ukraine”
http://uk.wikipedia.org/wiki/%D0%9C%D1%96%D1%81%D1%8C%D0%BA%D0%B8%D0%B9_%D0%BC%D1%83%D0%B7%D0%B5%D0%B9_%C2%AB%D0%94%D1%83%D1%85%D0%BE%D0%B2%D0%BD%D1%96_%D1%81%D0%BA%D0%B0%D1%80%D0%B1%D0%B8_%D0%A3%D0%BA%D1%80%D0%B0%D1%97%D0%BD%D0%B8%C2%BB
- c. Private Art Galleries
 - Soviart http://www.soviart.com.ua/artcenter/index_u.html
 - Bottega <http://new.bottega-gallery.com>
 - [Ya Gallery by Pavlo Gudimov](#)
All galleries Ukraine
<http://artua.info/galer.php>

- d. Private Theatres and Concert Halls
- DAKH <http://www.dax.com.ua>
 - "Bravo" <http://www.teatr-bravo.kiev.ua>
 - Puppet Theater "Kasper" <http://teatr-kasper.uaprom.net>
 - The "Crystal Hall" <http://crystalhall.com.ua/en/home-en/>
 - Concert Hall "Free Dom" <http://freedomhall.com.ua/concert-hall.html>
 - The Cultural and Education Centre "Master Class"(Kyiv) <http://masterclass.org/ukr>
- e. Private Cinemas
- "Kyiv" (The Cultural centre) <http://www.kievkino.com.ua/ru/cinema/8/index.html>
 - "Kinopalace" (network of the cinema) <http://www.kinopalace.net>
 - "Linia Kino" (network of the cinema) <http://liniakino.com>
- Useful information concerning cinema and films in the main cities of Ukraine on the website KINO-TEATR <http://kino-teatr.ua/uk/cinemas.phtml>
- f. Private legal film & CD/DVD distributors (film & music sector)
- B&H Film Distribution <http://www.bhfilms.com.ua>
 - "ArtHouseTrafic" <http://www.arhousetraffic.com/eng>
 - "Cascade Ukraine" Company <http://casfilm.com/about.php>
 - "1 + 1" TV Company <http://www.1plus1.ua/>
 - "Inter-Film" group of companies <http://kino.interfilm.com.ua>
 - "National Multimedia Company" (NMC Trade) <http://nmc.ua>
 - Digital Cinema Ukraine <http://digitalcinema.com.ua>
 - Kinotur Digital Intermediate Lab <http://kinotur.ua/ru/about-us>
 - Acropolis Company <http://acropolis-music.info/>
 - Pronto Film, Arthouse Traffic, Film.ua, Postmodern, Kinofabryka, Interfilm Production Studio <http://www.mediabusiness.com.ua/index.php?lang=ru>
- g. Private Broadcasters
- Retro Fm <http://www.retrofm.com.ua>
- Full list of the legal film distributors:
<http://dergkino.gov.ua/indx.php?rcode=80&level=0&templ=list&mt=m&ot=n>
- h. Private Book Publishers
- Folio Publishers Ltd. Kharkiv, Ukraine
<http://www.publishersglobal.com/directory/publisher-profile/3539/>
 - Svichado Publishers Ltd. Lviv, Ukraine
<http://www.publishersglobal.com/directory/publisher-profile/20158/>
 - Folio Publishers Ltd. Kharkiv, Ukraine
<http://www.publishersglobal.com/directory/publisher-profile/3539/>
 - BHV Publishing Group Kyiv, Ukraine
<http://www.publishersglobal.com/directory/publisher-profile/1821/>
 - Patronat Publishers Kyiv, Ukraine
<http://www.publishersglobal.com/directory/publisher-profile/20447/>
 - Calvaria Publishing House Lviv, Ukraine
<http://www.publishersglobal.com/directory/publisher-profile/2103/>
 - Baltia Druk Ltd Kyiv, Ukraine
<http://www.publishersglobal.com/directory/publisher-profile/1703/>
 - Ranok Publishing House Ltd. Kharkov, Ukraine
<http://www.publishersglobal.com/directory/publisher-profile/6156/>
- More information - http://www.nbu.gov.ua/webnavigator/publishers_ua

IV Regional/national/local policy initiatives focusing on inter-/intraregional aspects

1. International cooperation

- a. Participation in international networks, programmes, projects, with EU, EU-members, international organizations, like UNESCO, UN, USAID
- Project "Cultural Development is the Source for Prosperity of Community (within Eastern Partnership by EU support). Lead Partner: EKOART Donetsk City Youth Center of Arts (Ukraine). Other Partners: TOTEM Kherson city Center of Youth Initiatives (Ukraine)POST FACTUM Association of Journalists (Georgia)
 - Project "Directors Across Borders Eastern Partnership Program (DAB)" (within Eastern Partnership by EU support) Lead Partner: GOLDEN APRICOT Fund for Cinema Development (Armenia). Other Partners: Cinema Art Center Prometheus & Tbilisi International Film Festival (Georgia), ANADOLU Kültür Cultural Organization (Turkey), INTERFILM Production Company (Ukraine), INTERNEWS Media Support (Armenia).
 - Equal Opportunities for National Minorities and Disadvantaged Groups in Realising Cultural Rights: Richness Through Diversity (within Eastern Partnership by EU support) Lead Partner: GURT Resource Center (Ukraine). Other Partners: Civic Development and Partnership Foundation (Ukraine), NGO Center (Armenia), Ukrainian Social Investment Fund (Ukraine), Kyiv Oblast State Administration (Ukraine), Armenian Social Investment Fund (Armenia), BORIS Association (Poland)
 - Project "Sustainable Development of Local Communities Through the Actualisation of the Cultural Heritage" Lead Partner: INTELEKTUALNA PERSPECTYVA Charity Fund (Ukraine). Other Partners: State Research Center for Protection of Cultural Heritage Against Technogenic Accidents, Ministry of Emergencies of Ukraine (Ukraine), Ukrainian Center for Cultural Studies (Ukraine),LEV SAPIEGA Fund (Belarus).
 - Project "Sustainable Public Areas for Culture in Eastern Countries (SPACES)". Lead Partner: OIKODROM-FORUM NACHHALTIGE STADT (Austria). Other Partners: GeoAIR (Georgia), Foundation Center for Contemporary Art (FCCA) (Ukraine), Utopiana.am - culture creative NGO (Armenia), Oberliht - Young Artists Association (Moldova), Loose Associations (Croatia), Minotaurus Film (Luxembourg)
 - Project "The Book Platform". Lead Partner: NEXT PAGE Foundation (Bulgaria). Other Partners: Georgian Publishers and Booksellers Association (Georgia), Publishers' Forum (Ukraine), National Publishers Association of Armenia (Armenia)
 - Kyiv Initiative Regional Programme: Black Sea and South Caucasus
With projects (by support of the Council of Europe):
Pilot Project Rehabilitation Heritage of Historic Town
Cross-Border Cinema Culture
Intercultural cities

Attachment 1 The Ministry of Culture of Ukraine Organogram

